

Student Code of Conduct

Contents

The Student Code	2
of Conduct	3
Introduction and Context	3
The Student Code of Conduct	4
Procedure for dealing with alleged breaches of the Student Code of Conduct	; 6
Appendix I	14
Appendix II	15
Fire Safety	15
Respect for others	15
Additional Information	16
Support and Guidance	17
Version Control Statement	18



The Student Code of Conduct

Introduction and Context

1.1 The University aims to provide all of its students with the support and guidance they need to achieve success. The Student Code of Conduct sets out the standard of conduct the University expects of its students so that everyone can undertake their studies in a supportive and non-threatening environment.

1.2 The Student Code of Conduct does not deal with academic misconduct, which is addressed in the **Procedure for Handling Academic Misconduct**. Similarly, the Code does not cover conduct by staff towards students. Students must make any complaint about the conduct of a member of staff through the Student Complaints Procedure.

1.3 There are various other University policies and regulations that apply to students and breach of which will, where appropriate, be dealt with as breaches of the Student Code of Conduct. These regulations and policies include (but are not limited to):

- •Library Rules and Regulations
- Student Rules and Regulations for the Use of Computing Facilities (and associated IT Services policies)
- Manchester Met Accommodation Terms and Conditions of Residence (where relevant)

1.4 There is also a separate Fitness to Practice procedure which applies to programmes that include or lead to a professional qualification or that confer practitioner status. Concerns about the Fitness to Practice Procedure of students should be dealt with under the Fitness to Practice Procedure

Procedure, rather than under the Student Code of Conduct. However, if through the operation of the procedure in the Student Code of Conduct a student is found to have committed misconduct or serious misconduct, this might constitute a ground for taking action under the Fitness to Practice Procedure.

1.5 The University will always seek to act reasonably in dealing with student misconduct. It must also balance the interests of all members of the University community and sometimes of wider communities with whom it has to maintain good relationships. Exceptionally, this might result in action being taken outside of the provisions of the Student Code of Conduct. In such cases, decisions will always be taken by the Academic Registrar, on the basis of such information and advice as s/he considers appropriate, and will be explained to the student.

The Student Code of Conduct

2.1 Behaviour that is expected of students

i) On campus, and in halls of residence that are associated with the University, the University expects students:

- to behave in a responsible manner that will help to foster mutual respect and understanding between all members of the University community;
- to act within the law and not to engage in any activity or behaviour that is likely to bring the University into disrepute;
- to behave and communicate in ways that do not unreasonably offend others. Examples of unreasonably offensive behaviour include using abusive or obscene language and engaging in any form of discriminatory or anti-social behaviour;
- to treat with respect everyone with whom they come into contact, whether within the University or outside;
- to treat all University property with respect;
- to comply with reasonable requests of members of staff
- to adhere to the University's Health and Safety policies and to any specific requirements that apply to areas where they work;
- to observe fire alarms and related procedures and evacuate buildings when alarms sound;
- to disclose immediately to the University, via Student Case Management, if they are charged with, and/or convicted of, a serious criminal offence.

ii) Off Campus

The University works hard to build good relationships with its local communities. It works with residents' associations, local representatives and the police in order to help make Manchester Met campuses and the surrounding areas safe and friendly environments to live in. In that context, students are expected to:

- help to support these relationships in the way that they conduct themselves in the surrounding area;
- be considerate to their neighbours, especially in relation to noise levels and rubbish;
- be considerate when they are parking close to a Manchester Met campus, so that they do not obstruct residents;

• act within the law and not engage in activity or behaviour that is likely to bring the University into disrepute.

iii) Off Campus Visits and Field/Study Trips UK and International Students taking part in University activity

whilst off campus, for example on visits, field and study trips are expected to:

- Adhere to the requirements of the trip that have been provided by the University including
- Act in a way that ensures their own and others' safety
- Adhere to the legal requirements for the area/country they are travelling and don't act in a way that could damage the reputation of the University.
- Behave in a responsible manner and follow the instructions of the trip leader as set out in the trip itinerary

2.2 Behaviour that will be regarded as misconduct

The University considers the forms of inappropriate conduct that are set out below to constitute misconduct that is likely to lead to disciplinary action under the Student Code of Conduct. However, the list should not be regarded as exhaustive. Appendix II gives specific examples of behavior in Halls of Residence that would be regarded as a breach of the code. i) Unacceptable behaviour arising from the consumption of alcohol or other substances.

ii) The possession or use of illegal drugs or any substance that has a similar effect to illegal drugs.

iii) Failure to respect the rights of others to freedom of speech within the law, as required by s.43 of the Education Act (No.2) 1986.

iv) Disorderly, threatening, bullying, or offensive behaviour or language whilst on University premises, engaged in University activity whether on or off the University's premises, or using University computers or e-mail accounts.

v) Any action that did cause, or could have caused, a health and safety concern on University premises.

vi) Any behaviour that damages the University's relationship or reputation with its local communities, as evidenced by complaints from residents, residents' groups, local representatives or the police.

vii) Any behaviour that damages, or that has the potential to damage, the University's relationship or reputation with external organisations and groups.

viii) Disruption of, or improper interference with, the academic, administrative, sporting, social or other activities of the University.

ix) Abusive behaviour or language, harassment or bullying of any kind, towards a student, a member of staff or a visitor to the University by any means, including social media, whether on or off University premises and whether conducted through University or personal equipment.

x) Actions that involve making defamatory statements and/or false claims about a member of the University community. xi) Any interference with fire detectors, fire alarms or fire extinguishing equipment.

xii) Damage to, defacement of, University property or the property of other members of the University, whether caused intentionally or recklessly.

xiii) Misuse or unauthorised use of University premises and property, including computer misuse.

xiv) Breaches of the **Library Rules and Regulations**.

xv) Breaches of the **Student Regulations for the Use of University Computing Facilities** that are not otherwise specifically covered in the Student Code of Conduct.

xvi) Breaches of any other codes, policies or regulations adopted by the University or the Students' Union.

xvii) Recording lectures, other academic sessions or conversations without the agreement of the person(s) involved.

xviii) Failure to disclose details of personal identification to a member of staff of the University in circumstances in which it is reasonable to require that such information be given.

xix) Anti-social behaviour in University Halls of Residence, or in designated partner Halls managed by external providers.

xx) Breaches of the **Terms andConditions of Residence for halls ofresidence** managed by the University that are not otherwise covered in (i) to (xix) above.

2.3 Behaviour that will be regarded as serious misconduct

The following kinds of behaviour will normally be treated by the University as serious misconduct, where the disciplinary panel can consider whether the student should be suspended and/or expelled from the University and/or halls of residence that are managed by the University:

 abusive language used about others, or abusive behaviour towards others, on the grounds of their age, disability, gender, gender identity, pregnancy, maternity, race, religion, belief, or sexual orientation;

ii) taking University property, or the property of University staff or students, without permission;

iii) deceit, deception or dishonesty in relation to the University or its staff and students, or while on University-related activities;

iv) the supply of illegal drugs or any substance that has a similar effect to illegal drugs;

v) other behaviour that constitutes a potential criminal offence of relevance to the University or to the student's standing as a member of the University community;

vi) any action that did cause, or could have caused, serious harm on University premises or during University activities, or that creates a legal liability for the University;

vii) physical violence towards others, or the threat of physical violence;

viii) behaviour that compromises the reputation of the University;

ix) making unwanted remarks of a sexual nature;

x) engaging in a sexual act involving University staff or students without their consent;

xi) serious and/or repeated harassment of staff or students.

xii) Attempting to force or coerce others, with or without their knowledge, to consume alcohol, illegal substances or any other substance that has a similar affect to

illegal substances.

2.4 In addition, instances of misconduct in the categories that are set out in 2.1 above that are considered by the relevant University officers to have a significant impact on others or on the University generally, or to be persistent and/or repeated over a significant period of time, may be treated as serious misconduct.

Procedure for dealing with alleged breaches of the Student Code of Conduct

General

3.1 Where it is alleged that a student has breached the Student Code of Conduct, the matter shall be dealt with in accordance with one of the procedures set out below. Separate guidelines are available for members of staff who are involved in managing and operating these procedures. In matters relating to halls of residence, penalties that are imposed through the Student Code of Conduct cannot override the provisions of the **Terms and Conditions of Residence**.

Standard of Proof

3.2 The standard of proof that shall be used in all cases that are dealt with under this procedure shall be the balance of probabilities, which is the standard of proof that is used in Civil Law. This means that a disciplinary panel will be satisfied that an event occurred if the disciplinary panel considers that, on the evidence available, then occurrence of the event was more likely than not. The standard of proof shall not be varied according to the perceived seriousness of an allegation.

Allegations

3.3 Allegations of misconduct in Halls of Residence associated with the University should be reported to the **Student Living team**. All other allegations of misconduct should be reported to the **Student Case**

3.4 A student who wishes to make a complaint about the conduct of another student must use the **Student Complaints Procedure**. The University discourages the use of anonymous allegations in the complaints procedure, because transparency is central to the University's values and helps to ensure that complaints can be resolved in an atmosphere of trust, openness and fairness that preserves ongoing relationships. If a complaint is made anonymously it can be much harder to investigate and to preserve fairness to all parties. Allegations that are made anonymously, whether by students or by other persons, will be considered at the discretion of the University. In exercising this discretion, the factors that will be taken into account will include:

i) the gravity of the allegation;

ii) the credibility of the allegation;

iii) the likelihood of being able to conduct a fair investigation;

iv) whether there is good reason for the complainant to remain anonymous.

v) The University also has an anonymous reporting route for students who have experienced racial abuse or incidents of sexual misconduct. The "Report and Support" system guides students to appropriate support and provides information on how to take matters further if the student wishes. It is, however, not a substitute for the complaints procedure and formal investigations can normally only be undertaken if a student waives anonymity of both the reporting party and the reported party.

3.5 If a student:

i) persistently makes allegations outside of the Student Complaints Procedure; *and/or*

 (i) does not respect the confidentiality of other parties during an investigation; and/or iii) persistently seeks to publicise allegations about other staff or students that have been resolved or not upheld; and/or

iv) is adjudged to have made malicious or vexatious allegations;

then disciplinary action may be taken against them.

3.6 If it is necessary in order to balance conflicting but legitimate rights and needs of students and staff and to safeguard the orderly functioning of the institution, the University might wish to take informal action, even where there has been no formal finding of misconduct. In such cases, no disciplinary record will be kept on students' files.

Initial Assessment

3.7 When Student Case Management, or Student Living, receive an allegation of misconduct they will conduct an initial assessment and recommend one the following options:

i) there is no case to answer and no action should be taken;

ii) that some form of informal resolution such as mediation is appropriate;

iii) the student is required to attend an informal meeting;

iv) that a fixed penalty fine should be issued under the summary procedure;

v) the case should be referred to a Level 1 disciplinary panel;

vi) the case should be referred to a Level 2 disciplinary panel.

vii) that an investigation is required before a decision can be made on the appropriate process. An investigating officer will be assigned to conduct a full investigation.

3.8 As part of an investigation a student may be invited to an investigatory

interview with the investigating officer. This will not be a disciplinary hearing but will be part of the process for deciding whether disciplinary action is warranted. A second member of staff will attend the meeting to take notes. The student will be informed that the interview notes may be used in a disciplinary hearing. Students will be given 5 working days notice of the interview, be given a written specification of the allegations and be told that they have a right to be accompanied or represented at the meeting by a member of the University – usually an advisor from the **Students' Union Advice Centre**.

3.9 The recommendation, and the investigation report if relevant, will be provided to the appropriate senior member of staff who will make a final decision on the appropriate procedure to follow. Where there appears to be a clear case of misconduct the matter may be referred directly to a disciplinary panel without investigation.

Precautionary Action

3.10 Where the initial assessment identifies an allegation of serious misconduct, or where the University becomes aware that a student is under investigation by the relevant authorities on suspicion of having committed a criminal offence, a full risk assessment will be conducted. An appropriate Senior Member of Staff will consider whether any risks have been identified that require precautionary action.

The Senior Member of Staff will normally be one of the following:

- Academic Registrar
- Director of Student Services
- Assistant Academic Registrar
- Director of Education Services
- Director of Student Management
- Director of Curriculum Management
- Director of Assessment Management

Where one or more of the following conditions is satisfied the student may be suspended immediately from any or all of the University's premises and facilities by the member of staff responsible for the risk assessment:

 i) the student's continued presence compromises the reputation of the University;

ii) there is a reasonable suspicion that the student has been supplying illegal drugs;

iii) there is a risk that the student might harm others;

iv) there is a risk that the student might cause damage to property;

v) there is a risk that the student's continued presence may inhibit a proper criminal or University investigation;

vi) there is a risk that the student's continued presence may cause serious distress to other students or staff. Restrictions can include:

i) immediate suspension from University;

ii) restrictions on the campuses and/ or buildings of the University that the student may visit or the departments and/or services of the University that the student may access;

iii) termination of Licence Agreement for halls of residence managed by the University (giving the period of notice required under the terms of occupancy), or for the immediate transfer of the student to other residential accommodation (including another hall of residence that is managed by the University).

3.11 Normally, students shall be informed that a risk assessment is being carried out and they shall be given an opportunity to submit representations in writing to Student Case Management about a recommendation that they should be suspended from the University. Where

the Senior Member of Staff considers that the circumstances of a case justify the immediate suspension of a student, the student may be invited to make representations within 10 working days of the suspension being imposed.

3.12 Once restrictions have been imposed and there is no longer any opportunity to submit representations, the student will be informed that they have the right to appeal the restrictions. Any appeal should be submitted within 10 working days to Student Case Management and will be considered by the Academic Registrar (or the Chief Operating Officer in cases where the Academic Registrar took the decision to impose restrictions).

3.13 The Academic Registrar or Chief Operating Officer may either decide to retain the existing restrictions, or make some alternative decision that satisfies the institution's over-riding responsibility to ensure the safety, wellbeing and good order of the University or hall of residence community. The decision of the Academic Registrar or Chief Operating Officer shall be communicated to the student in writing and shall be final.

3.14 Suspensions that are imposed under this provision shall be reviewed by Student Case Management no less than once every month. The student can also request a review at any point if they believe there is a material change in the circumstances of the case. If there has been a material change the suspension will be referred back to the Senior Member of Staff for reconsideration.

Suspension is not an assumption of guilt and is not considered a disciplinary sanction. Any breach of a precautionary suspension will be treated as a disciplinary offence.

Informal meeting

3.15 Where misconduct can potentially be addressed without a formal process, an

informal meeting between the student and a senior member of staff from the Student Case Management Team may be held to discuss the matter. Other members of staff, such as academic staff, may also attend.

Following this meeting the Student Case Management Team will determine which of the following outcomes are most appropriate:

i) there is no case to answer and no action should be taken;

ii) that some form of informal resolution is agreed, such as mediation a training course or an apology.

iii) the student is required to attend an informal meeting;

iv) that a fixed penalty fine should be issued under the summary procedure;

v) the case should be referred to a disciplinary panel;

vi) that an investigation is required before a decision can be made on the appropriate process. An investigating officer will be assigned to conduct a full investigation.

vii) A warning letter is issued.

If a warning letter is issued at the informal stage of the procedure the outcome of the meeting shall be recorded in a letter from the Student Case Management Team. The letter contains a warning about the possible consequences of any further breach of the Student Code of Conduct. Allegations that are dealt with through an informal meeting should not normally then be referred to a Level 1 or Level 2 disciplinary panel.

3.16 If a student does not attend an informal meeting the senior member of staff can either:

i) send a warning letter in the student's absence;

ii) refer the matter to a disciplinary panel.

3.17 Students can choose to reject a warning letter and request that instead their case is considered by a disciplinary panel. Any such request must be made within 14 days of the meeting.

Summary Procedure

3.18 Where a member of staff directly witnesses evidence of misconduct on University premises, the matter may, at the discretion of the relevant senior member of staff, be dealt with under this Summary Procedure. In such cases, the student may accept a fixed penalty fine of up to £100, which must be paid at a University Finance Office within 14 days of the date of the written notification to the student. If the student does not accept the fixed penalty fine, the matter will be referred to a Level 1 disciplinary panel.

Level 1 and Level 2 Disciplinary Panels

3.19 Level 1 Panels will comprise two eligible members of staff, one of whom will chair the Panel. For Level 2 Panels the chair of the panel shall normally be an academic Head of Department, or the Director or Head of an administrative or professional services area. One member of the panel shall be a senior member of staff of the University and the other member of the panel shall be a member of the Students' Union or other student representative of the Students' Union.

3.20 At disciplinary panel hearings, the Investigating Officer, or a member of staff of the University who has not otherwise been involved in the process, shall present the case to the disciplinary panel. Investigating Officers may not be members of disciplinary panels.

3.21 In all cases that are referred to a Level 1 or a Level 2 disciplinary panel, the responding student shall receive a letter that sets out:

i) a clear specification of the allegation;

ii) the time, date and place of the disciplinary panel hearing;
iii) their right to be accompanied or represented at the disciplinary panel hearing by a member of the University – usually an advisor from the Students' Union Advice Centre;
iv) their right to call witnesses, to

question these and other witnesses and to submit documentary evidence and/or a written statement;

v) a copy of any documentation that will be referred to or made use of during the disciplinary panel hearing;

vi) in the case of a Level 2 disciplinary panel hearing, a notice that potential outcomes of the hearing could include suspension or expulsion from the University.

For Level 1 disciplinary panel hearings, the letter shall be provided no later than two working days before the hearing (or 48 hours before, in the case of allegations of misconduct in halls of residence that are managed by the University). For Level 2 disciplinary panel hearings, the letter shall be provided no later than 10 working days before the hearing (or 5 working days before, in the case of allegations of misconduct in halls of residence that are managed by the University).

vii) Where a disciplinary case has been initiated based on a complaint from a another student, the complainant will have the opportunity to attend the panel hearing. The complainant will have the opportunity to talk to the panel and the panel can ask questions of the complainant. The responding student will be able to listen to this interaction, either live or recorded, but will not be able to talk to the complainant. They will be given the opportunity to respond once the complainant has left the hearing.

3.22 If a student fails to attend a hearing, the Panel will consider the evidence and make a decision in the student's absence.

3.23 If the student admits the allegation, they may then proceed to make a statement of mitigation. If the student does not make an admission, any statement of mitigation is likely to be given much less weight. In all cases where the student does not admit the allegation, they shall be given an opportunity to respond to the allegation.

3.24 At the conclusion of the disciplinary panel hearing, the student, his/her friend or representative, and all witnesses and/ or parties to the allegation shall withdraw and the disciplinary panel shall reach a decision. The disciplinary panel shall determine whether or not the student has committed the alleged offence. If the disciplinary panel determines that the student is guilty, it shall then decide on the appropriate penalty. The decision of the disciplinary panel shall be normally be notified to the student orally in the first instance, and subsequently in writing. The written notification shall include a summary of the reasons for the decision and shall be sent within 10 working days of the hearing. **3.25** A copy of the letter to the student shall be sent to the Head of the academic Department in which the student is studying and another copy shall be held on file by Student Case Management or Student Living. The file copy shall be held for the duration of the student's registration with the University and may be referred to in the event that a further disciplinary allegation is made against the student. It should be disposed of when the student has graduated and it should not normally be referred to in references. There may however be some limited circumstances where disclosure may be justified if the matter is directly relevant to the duty of care which is owed to the recipient of the reference, for instance, where the job applied for requires a high degree of personal integrity or involves particular responsibility. As part of its decision, a panel should rule on the length of time for which the panel decision should remain on the student's file, and the extent to which it should be disclosed in a reference. In cases where panel members feel disclosure may be appropriate they should seek advice from the Legal Department and Assistant Academic Registrar.

Sanctions available to disciplinary panels

3.26 Where an allegation against a student is upheld, a disciplinary panel may impose one or more of the sanctions that are set out below. Level 1 and Level 2 disciplinary panels:

 i) Either an oral or a written warning, advising of the likely consequences of a further breach of the Student Code of Conduct and requiring the student to given a written undertaking as to their future good conduct;

 ii) A requirement to pay costs in respect of any damages and/or losses suffered by the University and/or any third parties as a result of the student's actions. Payment must be made to a University Finance Service Centre within 14 calendar days of the date of the written notification to the student;

iii) A fine of up to £300 for a Level 1 disciplinary panel and of up to £500 for a Level 2 disciplinary panel, which must be paid to a University Finance Service Centre within 14 calendar days of the date of the written notification to the student.
Fines may be suspended for a period of up to 6 months, during which time they will become payable only if the student does not meet conditions that have been specified by the disciplinary panel. If, at the end of the period, all of the conditions have been met, the fine will be cancelled;

 (iv) Withdrawal of specified services and/ or exclusion from particular areas of the University, for a period of up to one academic term;

v) a requirement to undertake up to 10 hours of non-academic work to make restitution for any situation that they

created or contributed to creating.

vi) A requirement to participate in a programme identified by the disciplinary panel to educate students about misconduct and its consequences.

vii) A restriction on access to facilities or buildings, or contact with staff and/or other students, for a period not exceeding the remainder of the current academic session, provided that this does not prevent the student's academic progress.

viii) Re-location of the student to similar accommodation, with immediate effect (where the allegation that has been upheld is of misconduct or serious misconduct in or relating to a hall of residence that is managed by the University).

Level 2 disciplinary panels only:

 ix) Recommendation that the agreement for University Halls of Residence is terminated by serving such notice on the student as is legally required (where the allegation that has been upheld is of misconduct or serious misconduct in or relating to a hall of residence that is managed by the University).

x) Suspension from the University for a specified period of time, up to and including three academic terms or an equivalent period.

xi) Exclusion from particular areas of the University, or University activities, for the duration of a student's enrolment at the University.

xii) Expulsion from the University.

3.27 If a student fails to comply with a non-financial sanction the Panel chair may impose a fine on the student of up to £300 where the finding is misconduct and up to £500 where the finding is serious misconduct. This sanction will not be imposed while a review is in progress.

Request for Review

3.28 Students shall have the right to request a review of the finding imposed by a disciplinary panel, on one or more of the following grounds:

 that new information has come to light, which calls into question the validity of the conclusion reached by the disciplinary panel;

ii) that there was a material irregularity in the conduct of the process;

iii) that the sanction imposed by the disciplinary panel was disproportionate to the offence committed.

3.29 Requests for reviews must be submitted to the Student Case Management Team or Student Living in writing within six working days of the date of the written notification of the panel decision. Reviews in cases that arise from Level 1 disciplinary panel hearings relating to halls of residence shall be dealt with by the Head of Residential and Conference Services or their nominee Reviews in all other cases, except those where the finding of the disciplinary panel is that the student should be suspended or excluded from the University, shall be dealt with by a Director or Head within Academic Services who has had no previous involvement in the case. Reviews in cases where the finding of the disciplinary panel is that the student should be suspended or excluded from the University shall be dealt with by a Deputy Vice-Chancellor or Pro-Vice Chancellor who has had no previous involvement in the case. Reviews shall normally be completed within 15 working days of the request for review being received. The Review Stage is not a rehearing of the original case. The reviewer will consider the documents considered by the disciplinary panel, the panel outcome and any additional evidence or written representations supplied by the student(s) requesting review.

3.30 The senior member of staff who reviews the case may reach one of the following conclusions:

(i) to uphold the finding of the disciplinary panel and the sanction(s) imposed;

(ii) to uphold the finding of the disciplinary panel, but to lessen the sanction(s) imposed;

(iii) to refer the case for re-consideration to a new disciplinary panel;

(iv) to quash the finding of the disciplinary panel and the sanction(s) imposed.

3.31 The review outcome shall normally by communicated to the student in writing within 20 working days of the review request being received. A copy of the letter shall be sent to the Head of the academic Department in which the student is studying and another copy shall be held by Student Case Management or Student Living.

Students who are convicted of a criminal offence that results in the imposition of a custodial sentence

3.32 Where the University becomes aware that a student has been convicted of a criminal offence that has resulted in the imposition of a custodial sentence, the Assistant Academic Registrar shall immediately cancel the student's registration with the University and the student's current enrolment(s). If, at the end of the custodial period of his/her sentence, the student wishes to return to the University, s/he must submit a new application in the normal way. If at the time the new application is made, the conviction is not deemed to be spent under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, the matter will be considered by a Risk Assessment Panel, in accordance with the University's Recruitment and Admissions Policy.

Completion of Procedures

3.33 Once all stages, including the review stage, of this procedure have been exhausted, a Completion of Procedures letter will be issued. A student who considers that the University has not followed and/or applied the Student Code of Conduct and this procedure correctly may then refer the matter to the **Office of the Independent Adjudicator for Higher Education**, which provides an independent scheme for the review of student complaints.

Appendix I

The Student Code of Conduct and placements

4.1 The University requires full disclosure of relevant information in order to arrange placements for students. If a student has a serious, relevant, disciplinary record or a related criminal conviction that is not 'spent', their permission will need to be obtained to disclose that information to potential placement providers, so that the providers can decide whether or not to accept them. Where a student who is in this position does not give permission for such information to be disclosed, the University will be unable to arrange a placement for them.

4.2 Students who are on placements will be subject to the Code of Conduct and associated procedures of the placement provider, including the provider's absolute authority to dismiss. Dismissal from a placement for misconduct constitutes either misconduct or serious misconduct under the Student Code of Conduct, because it damages, or has the potential to damage, the University's relationship or reputation with an external organisation.

4.3 Where dismissal has resulted from a finding of fact made by the placement provider, this will not need to be reopened by the University. The issue for the University will be the seriousness of the offence. Where the placement provider has not gone through a formal disciplinary process, the University may need to invoke its own disciplinary procedures.

4.4 If the pre-placement conduct of a student has the potential to damage the University's relationship with the placement provider, the relevant Head

of Department may refuse to allow the student to undertake a placement. Where the student is on a programme that includes a placement year, this will result in the student being transferred to a non-placement variant of the programme. Detailed guidance will be provided to students in programme and related handbooks. Requests for reviews of such decisions will be dealt with under the review procedure in the Student Code of Conduct.

Implementation and Review of this policy

4.5 The Equality Act 2010 includes a requirement for all Higher Education Institutions to carry out Impact Assessment on all policies and procedures, both formal and informal and written and unwritten. This procedure will be screened to determine equality relevance for the following equality groups: Race, Gender, Disability, Age, Sexual Orientation and Religion and Belief.

4.6 In order to facilitate the impact assessment process, appropriate records will be kept during any future implementation of this policy.

4.7 Information will be collected on gender, ethnic origin, age group, disability, sexual orientation and religion and beliefs for monitoring purposes. The nature of the issues will also be recorded for monitoring purposes. Some confidential monitoring of outcomes will also be recorded to evaluate the impact of the procedure upon University staff.

4.8 The policy and its associated Impact Assessment will be reviewed every 2 years by Student Case Management.

Appendix II

Guidance on the Student Code of Conduct in Manchester Met Accommodation

In Manchester Met accommodation, students must comply with the terms of the Student Code of Conduct, and the Terms and Conditions of Residence. Specifically this means:

Fire Safety

You must adhere to all fire regulations and evacuation procedures, which are displayed in the accommodation and must not cause a fire hazard. In particular:

a) You must attend the compulsory fire meetings;

b) You must not obstruct Communal Areas or fire escape routes nor prop open, or tamper with, the fire doors (as they are designed to reduce the spread of fire) and not to abuse, interfere or otherwise tamper with any of our fire prevention and detection equipment;

c) You must complete an online induction prior to moving into your Hall.

d) The following items are not allowed in Halls:

- inflatable items or furniture;
- candles;
- incense sticks/burners or other naked flame;
- fireworks;
- petrol, paraffin, bottled gas, oil;
- oil-filled radiators:
- halogen lights:
- e-cigarettes;
- deep fat fryers;
- sun-beds;
- hookah or shisha pipes; or
- Knives, weapons or replica weapons
- E-bikes and e-scooters
- Large quantities of empty glass bottles

Respect for others

Within the accommodation, you must:

a) show respect, at all times, for everyone living and/or working in or around the accommodation and not do anything that is likely to annoy them;

b) keep noise at a level that does not interfere with the study, sleep or comfort of other students or staff.

c) when entering and exiting the premises, keep noise at a level that does not disturb your neighbours;

d) not allow persistent use of the facilities by non-residents;

e) not smoke or permit the smoking of cigarettes (including e-cigarettes), shisha or anything else.

f) not possess, use or permit the use of illegal drugs, including any substance that has a similar effect to illegal drugs eg. nitrous oxide

g) understand that if you or your visitors smoke, or drugs are found in your room, disciplinary action will be taken.

h) not place any items on or throw anything from any balconies or windows;

i) not distribute any marketing materials without the prior approval of the University; and

j) comply with the car park policy.

Additional Information

This Procedure forms part of the University's regulatory framework. Other institutional Policies and Procedures that relate to Assessment include:

- Undergraduate Assessment Regulations
- Taught Postgraduate Assessment Regulations
- Procedure for Addressing Academic Misconduct
- Procedure for Consideration of Exceptional Factors
- Procedure for Academic Appeals and Review of Assessment-Related Matters
- Student Complaints Procedure
- Assessment Arrangements for Disabled Students
- Fitness to Practice Procedure







Support and Guidance

Further support and guidance in relation to these Assessment Regulations is available from the following locations:

Assessment Regulations website www.mmu.ac.uk/assessment-regulations

Student Hubs www.mmu.ac.uk/students/hubs

Students' Union Advice Centre www.theunionmmu.org/your-advicecentre

Telephone: **0161 247 6533** Email: **s.u.advice@mmu.ac.uk**







Version Control Statement

Version:	2.4
Document Title:	Student Code of Conduct
Author Name:	Student Case Management
Approved:	30 June 2017
Approved By:	Board of Governors
Review Date:	June 2023
Detail of Revision:	Changes to 3.10, 3.16, 3.21, 3.26, 3.27, 3.29
Approved by:	Education Committee
Date of Revision:	16th June 2021
Date of Revision:	30 July 2019
Approved By:	Education Committee
Detail of Revision:	Changes to B1, C10, 11, 12, 13, 17, 19, 24, 28, 31 and addition of C32.
Date of Revision:	June 2018
Approved by:	Academic Registrar
Detail of Revision:	Changes to A5, B2.1, C7, 10, 11, 14 and 17. August 2020
Approved by:	Academic Registrar
Detail of Revision:	Changes to 2.3, 3.15, 3.19, 3.21
Approved by:	Chief Operating Officer
Date of Revision:	6 July 2022
Detail of Revision:	Changes to 2.1, 3.25, 3.32 and Appendix II d
Approved by:	Chief Operating Officer
Date of Revision:	30 June 2023